
 

 

CARE, HEALTH AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW  
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 
 
Tuesday, 18 April 2023 at 1.30 pm in the Lamesley Room - Civic Centre 
 
From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey 
Item 
 

Business 
  

1   Apologies for absence  
 
  

2   Minutes of last meeting (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
  

3   Health and Wellbeing Board - Update (Pages 7 - 18) 
 
Report of Strategic Director, Integrated Adults and Social Care 
 
  

4   Community Mental Health Transformation (Pages 19 - 22) 
 
Report of the North East and North Cumbria Integrated Care Board  
 
  

5   Work Programme and Development of 2023-24 Work Programme (Pages 23 - 
28) 
 
Joint Report of the Chief Executive and Strategic Director, Corporate Services and 
Governance 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact: Rosalyn Patterson, Email: rosalynpatterson@gateshead.gov.uk 
Tel: 0191 433 2088, Date: Monday, 10 April 2023 

Public Document Pack

mailto:rosalynpatterson@gateshead.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CARE, HEALTH AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
MEETING 

 
Tuesday, 7 March 2023 

 
 
PRESENT: Councillor W Dick (Chair) 
  
 Councillor(s): B Goldsworthy, M Goldsworthy, I Patterson, 

J Wallace, M Hall, J Gibson, H Haran, D Robson, 
D Weatherley and A Wintcher 

  
  
  
APOLOGIES: Councillor(s): R Mullen, J Green and S Potts 
  
CHW30 MINUTES OF LAST MEETING  

 
   

The minutes of the meeting held on 31 January 2023 were approved as a correct 
record. 
  

CHW31 PROPOSED CLOSURE OF METRO INTERCHANGE SURGERY  
 

 The Committee received a report and verbal update regarding NE&NC ICB 
proposals to close the surgery at 5b New Century House, Jackson Street, 
Gateshead and details of the proposed engagement process with patients and 
stakeholders. 
  
The North East and North Cumbria ICB have made the decision to close the surgery 
at Metro Interchange, 5b New Century House, Jackson Street Gateshead following a 
review of the options for the future of the practice following the unexpected death of 
the sole contract holder. 
  
A briefing setting out the position and proposed engagement process with patients 
and stakeholders as set out in Appendix 1 to the report. 
  
RESOLVED – That the information be noted 
  

CHW32 CARERS SUPPORT UPDATE - ADULTS  
 

 The Committee received a report and presentation which provided an update on 
progress of the Adult Support services for Carers, commissioned by Care, Wellbeing 
and Learning. 
  
The Committee were advised that support for Adult Caregivers in Gateshead is 
provided by two commissioned services, Gateshead Carers Association and Carers 
Trust Tyne and Wear. These services are two elements of a three-part Carers 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

contract, which commenced on 1 May 2019 and expires on 30 April 2024. The 
contract which also includes services for Young Carers provided by Carers Trust 
Tyne and Wear, is jointly funded by Gateshead Council and North East & North 
Cumbria Integrated Care Board (ICB). 
  
Gateshead Carers Association provide a range of support  services for adult 
caregivers over the age of 18 years. Support includes, completing carer 
assessments, 1 to 1 confidential carer wellbeing support, carer wellbeing fund, a 
carers café, tailored support for young adult carers aged 18-25 years, carer support 
groups and activities, telephone befriending service and a holiday home in Cumbria. 
  
Carers Trust Tyne and Wear provide the Carer Relief Service for adult caregivers up 
to a total maximum of 400 hours per week. This service offers up to 4 hours per 
week replacement care to allow caregivers a break from their day-to-day caring 
responsibilities. There are 3 key elements to this service: 
  
Providing practical support e.g. shopping, household tasks and meal preparation 
  
Providing personal care e.g. personal hygiene, medication prompting and dressing 
  
Providing social care e.g. help with bill paying, support to access training or local 
facilities 
  
The Committee were advised that data for the first three quarters of 2022/23 (1 April 
2022 – 31 December 2022) from Gateshead Carers Association identified a total of 
1163 adult caregivers who were supported during this period. 
  
A total of 403 new caregivers were referred and supported from April 2022 to 
December 2022, of which 73% were female and 27% male; 55% of the referrals 
were for caregivers aged 26 to 65 years and 19% were agreed 66 to 80 years. 
  
The Committee were advised that overall, the Carer Relief Service helped to 
improve carer’s health, well-being and quality of life, and increase their social 
connectedness. Around three quarters of the carers surveyed said that they had a 
better quality of life (76%), felt less lonely or isolated (74%) and had improved well 
being (73%) as a result of receiving the Carer Relief Service. Two thirds (67%) said 
that the service had helped them to look after their mental health, an over half (59%) 
their physical health. Only three people disagreed with any of  these statements. 
  
RESOLVED – That the information be noted. 
  

CHW33 WORK TO TACKLE HEALTH INEQUALITIES IN GATESHEAD - UPDATE  
 

 The Committee received a presentation on action to address Health Inequalities in 
Gateshead. 
  
The Committee were advised that inequalities across a range of health outcomes 
included: 
  

        Breastfeeding 

Page 4



 

  
        Smoking rates 

  
        Alcohol related hospital admissions 

  
        Sexual health indicators 

  
        Cancers 

  
        Cardio-vascular disease 

  
        Respiratory disease 

  
        Suicide rates 

  
The Committee were advised that those in the most deprived areas lose around a 
decade of their life expectancy compared to those in the more affluent wards of 
Gateshead and that the gap in life expectancy has widened. 
  
Wider determinants of health through a cost of living crisis were outlined to the 
Committee as well as the Health and Wellbeing Strategy Policy objectives and the 
development of the approach and plan, the journey to date and the development of 
workstreams to take this work forward. 
  

        RESOLVED – That the information be noted. 
  

CHW34 CQC ASSURANCE  
 

 Steph Downey circulated interim guidance last week from CQC and provided the 
Committee with a verbal update on where things were currently with the roll out. 
  
Officers are currently assessing the information and how it will affect Gateshead and 
a further update will be provided in due course. 
  
RESOLVED – That the information be noted 
  

CHW35 OSC WORK PROGRAMME  
 

 The Committee received a report which set out the provisional work programme for 
the municipal year 2022/23. 
  
Appendix 1 set out the work programme as it currently stands and highlights 
proposed changes to the programme in bold and italics for ease of identification. 
  
RESOLVED - i) That the information be noted 
  ii) That further reports on the work programme will be brought to the 

Committee to identify any additional policy issues, which the 
Committee may be asked to consider 

  
 

Page 5



 

 
 
 

Chair……….……………….. 
 
 

Page 6



  

 
      
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  Gateshead Health & Wellbeing Board –  

Progress Update 
 
REPORT OF:  Dale Owens, Strategic Director, Integrated 

Adults and Social Care 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary 
To update and seek the views of the Care, Health & Wellbeing OSC on the 
work of the Gateshead Health & Wellbeing Board for the six-month period 
October 2022 to March 2023. 
____________________________________________________________ 
 
Background 
 
1. The Health and Social Care Act 2012 provided for the establishment of 

Health & Wellbeing Boards (HWBs) as committees of local authorities to 
bring together leaders from the health and care system to work together to 
improve the health and wellbeing of their local population.  

 
2. As part of the 2022/23 work programme for the Care, Health & Wellbeing 

OSC, it was agreed to provide two six monthly updates on the work of the 
HWB. A report has already been provided on the work of the HWB for the 
period 1st April to 30th September 2022.  

 
3. This second report provides an update on for the period 1 October 2022 to 

30 March 2023. 
 
Gateshead Health & Wellbeing Board – Progress Update October 2022 to 
March 2023 
 
4. The following update highlights key issues considered by the HWB during 

the second half of 2022/23. 
 
North East & North Cumbria Integrated Care Strategy 
 
5. It was reported to the Board that each Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) is 

required to develop an integrated care strategy covering the whole ICP 
population by December 2022. The strategy must use the best evidence, 
building from local assessments of needs (JSNAs), and enable integration 
and innovation. 

6. Integrated Care Boards and local authorities must then ‘have regard to’ the 
strategy when making decisions, and commissioning or delivering 
services. 

CARE, HEALTH & WELLBEING 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

18 April 2023

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



  

 
7. A consultation draft of the North East and North Cumbria Integrated Care 

Strategy was considered by the Board. It was noted that we have a strong 
foundation of partnership working, an outstanding health and care 
workforce, and some of the best research and development programmes 
of any system. However, our health outcomes are some of the worst in 
England, with deep and protracted inequalities, which correlate with socio-
economic deprivation. 

 
8. The Board supported the vision and goals of the strategy but made a 

number of comments on the draft document, including: 

• There needs to be a much stronger focus on Children and Young 
People within the strategy and the Board sought an assurance that 
children will very much be at the forefront of the final strategy 
document. The Board also noted that a detailed response had been 
provided by the Directors of Children’s Services to the draft strategy 
along similar lines about the lack of reference to Children and Young 
People and the need to make key commitments in terms of 
Children’s Mental Health. 

• The inclusion of prevention is really important. There needs to be a 
number of different plans to find solutions to key health challenges - 
sometimes we have tended to look at a complex problem to see 
what might be a simple solution which in turn can create perverse 
incentives. The focus on prevention and preventative measures 
generally could be enhanced within the strategy. 

• The strategy should incorporate a more asset-based approach 
around connected communities. 

• There should be a focus on place, in terms of the determinants of 
health and wellbeing – people should be able to live in a decent 
house in a decent place with a decent job, and communities should 
be supported in ways that promote good health. 

• We need to get the finances right and secure pooled budgets. 
Currently, local government finance and health finance 
arrangements are not aligned - we need to get this right first. We 
also have major shortages of health and social care professionals 
which needs to be addressed early on within the strategy. 

• There needs to be the right balance between the ability to develop a 
local strategy, develop a local response to health and care 
challenges and responding to the requirements of strategies 
developed at broader geographies. 

• If we are required to have regard to the ICS strategy in terms of our 
local decision making, we need to have shared data and an 
evidence base. 

 
 
 
 

Page 8



  

SEND (Special Educational Needs and Disability) Strategy 
 
9. The Board received a presentation on a new SEND Strategy for 

Gateshead, developed by extensive multi-agency working to identify our 
priorities from a thorough self-evaluation across all area services. It was 
reported that key priorities link to Ofsted's focus on Education, Health and 
Care Plan (EHCP) processes, joint working, commissioning and 
alternative provision and form the basis of a clear action plan. 
 

10. Our vision is for all children with SEND to thrive, have appropriate 
provision, feel positive about their next steps and believe in themselves. 
We will put families at the heart of everything we do.  For children with 
Special Educational needs, four priorities have been identified: 

 
(i) To have a transparent approach to identify children’s needs which 

is understood by families and professionals, so that the right support is 
in place at the right time.  

 
(ii) To actively engage with children, young people and their families so  

that their vision of 'Our choice, our voice' is heard and supported 
during strategic planning. 
 

(iii) For health, social care, and education services to work together 
to commission the best support for pupils’ needs, and to keep 
all children and young people safe. 
 

(iv) To ensure that children and young people are well prepared, supported 
and feel positive about taking their next steps.  
 

11. It was noted that Gateshead’s SEND strategy and Inclusion Strategy have 
been developed alongside each other as the Inclusion Strategy will play a 
significant role in improving the quality of provision for children and young 
people with SEND. 

 
12. The Board also received an update on the new Area SEND inspection 

system.  
 
Director of Public Health Annual Report 
 
13. The Board considered the findings of the Director of Public Health Annual 

Report for 2022 ‘Minding the Gap’ which focused on women and health 
inequalities. It was reported that gender is a determinant of health and that 
inequalities in life expectancy between the most and least deprived women 
is increasing at a much faster rate than for men. The report considered 
gender inequality using the six domains of work, money, knowledge, time, 
power and health and how they impact specifically on women in 
Gateshead. 
 

14. The report made a number of recommendations relating to the following 
themes which were endorsed by the Board: 

Page 9



  

- Giving every child the best start in life. 
- Enabling children, girls and women to live their lives to the fullest. 
- Empowering women to have financial stability and independence. 
- Ensuring a healthy standard of living for all and creating generational 

life changes. 
- Developing safe sustainable places and communities. 
- Ensuring that women live healthy lives for longer. 
 

Gateshead Health Trust’s Corporate Strategy 2022/23 - 2024/25 
 
15. The Board received a presentation from Gateshead Health NHS 

Foundation Trust on its Corporate Strategy ‘Our patients, Our people, Our 
partners’. It was reported that the Trust has identified five strategic aims at 
the core of its strategy: 

• We will continuously improve the quality and safety of our services 
for our patients.  

• We will be a great organisation with a highly engaged workforce. 
• We will enhance our productivity and efficiency to make the best use 

of our resources. 
• We will be an effective partner and be ambitious in our commitment 

to improving health outcomes.  
• We will develop and expand our services within and beyond 

Gateshead. 
 
16. These aims are supported by seven enabling functions: Digital and Data, 

Innovation and Improvement, Estates, Finance, People and Organisational 
Development, Communication and Engagement, and Planning and 
Information. 
 

17. It was also reported how the Corporate Strategy will support 
implementation of our Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  

 
Gateshead Place Governance 
 
18. The Board considered a paper from the Gateshead Cares System Board 

on options for governance at Place going forward having regard to national 
guidance and processes set out by the Chief Executive of NENC 
Integrated Care Board. 
 

19. It was reported that a Joint Place Committee could be helpful for making 
joint decisions within its scope of authority between relevant partner 
organisations. The statutory bodies can agree to delegate defined 
decision-making functions (and resources) to the joint committee in 
accordance with their respective schemes of delegation.  

 
20. The Board was supportive of a direction of travel that would see a Joint 

Gateshead Place Committee put in place, building upon our existing 
arrangements. It was noted that there will need to be further discussions 
on roles, membership, structure and accountabilities and it was suggested 

Page 10



  

that this is done across the partnership in a phased way (also see 
paragraph 23 below).  
 

Future direction of Gateshead Cares (Gateshead Health and Care 
System) – HWB Planning Session 

 
21. A Planning Session for our local health and care system took place on the 

10th of March which was facilitated by Professor Peter Kelly. The purpose 
of the session was to:  

- revisit our ambitions and priorities and consider where we currently 
are as a system; 

- consider our future direction of travel and working arrangements 
going forward. 
 

22. The session was well attended by representatives of partners who sit on 
the HWB and Gateshead Cares System Board. 
 

23. Key messages from the session included: 
 

Transparency and Honesty in Addressing Inequalities Gap 
We need to be transparent and honest about those areas we have not 
made sufficient progress against e.g. in addressing the health and 
inequalities gap which is widening in Gateshead. 
 
Existing funding arrangements can perpetuate health inequalities. We need 
to focus on the resources we control so that they can be targeted more 
equitably. 
 
Targeted Approach 
 
A targeted approach is needed more than ever if we are to bridge the 
inequalities gap, to reach communities most in need and to engage with 
disenfranchised members of our communities. Resources need to be 
targeted to where they are most needed. 
 
Accessibility 
 
There needs to be more of a focus on how our organisations gain access to 
individuals and communities, rather than how they should access our 
organisations and services. 

 
Focus on Prevention 
There needs to be a greater focus on prevention i.e. prevention at every 
opportunity. We need to find a way to resource preventative approaches to 
health and care against a backdrop of significant financial challenges 
across our local system. 
 

Page 11



  

We need to turn things on their head – justify why we should not focus on 
prevention (rather than having to justify a focus on prevention). A cultural 
change is needed to facilitate this. 
 
We also need to be better at building in lived experience and value service 
user experience in developing preventative responses. 
 
Our Priorities 
We have the right priorities as a system that support our health and 
wellbeing strategy. It is more about how we align our priorities and take 
them forward with a focus on prevention e.g. through targeted approaches, 
as mentioned above. 
 
Our Workforce 
It is clear that there are workforce challenges across our health and care 
system which impact on how we can deliver key programmes of work that 
underpin our priorities. These challenges need to be addressed pro-actively 
in a joined-up way by partner organisations across our local system, 
making the most of opportunities to work in tandem with one another. 
 
Harnessing our Evidence Base and Data 
Data has also been identified as a key enabler in taking forward our 
priorities. We need to harness our evidence base and data across our 
system to inform and drive forward preventative approaches linked to our 
programme areas and enablers i.e. data and evidence led approaches. 
 
Doing what is best for Gateshead communities 
Whilst we need to comply with government / national requirements, our 
focus needs to be on what will secure the greatest benefit for Gateshead 
people and communities. 
 
Governance Arrangements 
We need to ensure that our governance arrangements support our 
ambitions and direction of travel as a Place system. Our aspiration is to 
work towards a Joint Committee arrangement with the ICB at Gateshead 
Place. This could enable us to better control / join-up up our finances, 
secure maximum value and develop joint business cases. 
 
Consideration also needs to be given to how a Joint Committee 
arrangement can help us to drive preventative approaches / pathways. 

 
Alcohol Related Harm 
 
24. The Board was provided with an overview of the public health rationale for 

Minimum Unit Pricing (MUP) for the sale of alcohol. It was reported that 
the evidence indicates that there had been some decline in alcohol 
consumption in Scotland as a result of MUP. 
 

Page 12



  

25. The Board considered a paper on Alcohol Related Harm and received 
presentations from Professor Eileen Kaner (Newcastle University), Sue 
Taylor (Balance) and public health colleagues.  

 
26. It was noted that alcohol-related hospital admissions can be due to regular 

alcohol use that is above low risk levels and are most likely to involve 
increasing risk drinkers, higher risk drinkers, dependent drinkers and binge 
drinkers. In terms of admissions for alcohol-specific conditions, numbers 
locally were reported as being 972 per 100,000 of the population, against 
an England figure is 644. It was also felt that there was unmet need within 
our communities.  

 
27. Treatment for adults locally has been successful and is on par with 

national figures. A number of campaigns raise awareness of the health 
harms. 

 
28. Regional work is being undertaken as part of recommendations from the 

Regional Alcohol Needs Assessment. We need to look at partnership 
working to better meet the needs of vulnerable dependent drinkers. Work 
also needs to be undertaken to embed an ‘alcohol free childhood’.   

 
29. It was recognised that there are some challenges to be faced, including 

the prevalence of alcohol within people’s lives as the visibility of alcohol is 
across the board, including to children. It was noted that we need to have 
the same sort of approach in place as with tobacco.  

 
Gateshead Cares System Board 
 
30. The Health and Wellbeing Board has continued to receive regular updates 

on the work of the Gateshead Cares System Board. This included: 
Health & Wellbeing Strategy ‘Good Homes, Jobs, Health and Friends’ 

• Consideration of how the Health & Wellbeing Strategy’s policy 
objectives can be progressed through the System Board’s 
programme areas. This included how Professor’s Chris Bentley’s 
‘population intervention triangle’ can be applied as a tool for delivery 
and used as a framework for action to reduce health inequalities. 

 
Programme Areas and Enablers 

31. It was reported that the System Board overviewed progress against key 
programme areas and enablers of integration during 2022/23 and that 
plans were being developed for 2023/24:  
Programme Areas: 

• Children and Young People: Best Start in Life /SEND – this included 
a Strategic overview of key SEND initiatives and the development of 
a SEND Strategy. Specific initiatives taken forward included: 
- Launch of Baby Box Appeal (supporting and promoting healthy 

baby development), and the HENRY programme to support 

Page 13



  

families to help children achieve the best start in life, using a 
holistic, evidence-based approach. 

- Work to develop a Teenage Resource based on the principles of 
the existing The Little Orange Book. 

- Development and roll out of Learning Disability 14+ Health check 
good practice guidelines and postcard. 

- A Youth Justice Service Digital Me resource and bespoke 
counselling offer and training. 

• Mental Health Transformation – this has included work to embed 
mental health transformation into locality working, into family hubs 
development and autism hubs; the creation of over 30 new roles 
which work within Primary Care Network (PCN) areas and exploring 
opportunities to co-locate teams and services across the borough.  
Work is also underway to develop the crisis pathway to avoid 
admission to hospital and the commencement of a review of the 
Older Person’s mental health pathway; to take forward a pilot to 
address the inequalities autistic adults face in accessing services as 
well as ‘deep-dive’ exercises to better understand the low take-up of 
the Talking Therapies service in Gateshead and the inequalities 
faced by the deaf community in accessing mental health services. 

• Multiple & Complex Needs: People@theHeart – this has included 
feedback on a formal launch event on the 6th of December where it 
was highlighted that there is not a need for a new service, but rather 
for existing services to work better together in a way that reaches 
out to people with MCN through engagement and joined up services 
(‘right door first time’). 

• Adults /Older People: Transformation of Home Care & Care Homes 
– this includes the importance of home care in supporting ‘flow’ 
across the health and care system; a consideration of workforce 
and ‘Fair Cost of Care’ challenges across the sector and their 
impact; and work to move towards more outcomes-based contract 
models. 
 

Enablers of Integration: 

• Workforce: making Gateshead a great place to live and work – this 
includes the role of the Gateshead Cares Workforce Partnership in 
taking forward workforce development issues at a system level and 
providing further opportunities for collaborative working e.g. 
- ‘Off the shelf’ work experience models within primary care to be 

developed that system partners can access. 
- A Gateshead place-based Summer School is being developed 

that will engage with Year 9+ students from local schools who 
have an interest in health and care careers. 

Page 14



  

- A priority has been identified around developing a system-based 
Care Academy to provide responsive, high quality training 
opportunities for health and care staff. 

- Work is also underway around developing nursing associate 
roles in social care. 

• Digital Gateshead (inc. digital poverty / inclusion) – this has 
included a Programme Manager hosted by Connected Voice to help 
co-ordinate work and develop connections across the system. 

• System Development: Primary Care Network (PCN) Development – 
this has included work to address health inequalities, patient 
access, and PCN input to mental health transformation work. 

• Data: Axym / Gateshead Outcomes Framework – this has included 
a webinar to promote the system data tool ‘Axym’ and to 
disseminate its application across work programme areas to deliver 
the Gateshead Outcomes Framework. 

 
Assurance 
 
32. The following items were considered by the HWB as part of its assurance 

role. 
 
Health Protection Assurance Report 

33. The Board received a report providing an overview of the health protection 
system and outcomes for Gateshead as part of the Director of Public 
Health’s responsibility to provide assurance that the current arrangements 
for health protection are robust and equipped to meet the needs of the 
population. 
 

34. It was reported that an analysis of data and information regarding health 
protection outcomes for screening, immunisation and communicable 
diseases and air quality had highlighted that there are areas that require 
improvement. It was noted that these areas would inform the assurance 
priorities for next year. 

 
Gateshead Better Care Fund Submission 2022/23 

35. The Board endorsed the Gateshead Better Care Fund (BCF) submission 
for 2022/23. The BCF focuses on the integration of health and social care 
in a way that supports person-centred care and ultimately better outcomes 
for people and carers. The submission incorporated: 
 

• A BCF Planning template that set out details of income and 
expenditure against schemes, metrics and compliance with national 
conditions. 

• A Narrative Plan that set out details of our approach to integration, 
our priorities for 2022/23 and how we are working together to take 
them forward. 

Page 15



  

 
Other Issues considered by the Health and Wellbeing Board 
36. Other issues considered by the Board included: 
 

Delayed Discharges: 

37. The Board received a report seeking views on current and future plans to 
support health and social care to prepare for winter and reduce the harms 
caused to individuals by delayed discharges and unavailability of social 
care support to effect timely, safe, discharge. 
 

38. Key issues and challenges facing the health and care sector were 
outlined, particularly around capacity and workforce, as well as the impact 
this has had on our patients. Actions being taken to expedite timely 
discharge were reported to the Board, which endorsed the approach being 
taken by partners. 
   
Winter Pressures Plan: 

39. The Board received an update on the Winter Pressures Plan. It was 
reported that an increasing demand was being placed on urgent and 
emergency care services due to: 

• Changing needs of an ageing population 
• Changing expectations as a result of a 24/7 culture 
• Year-round demand, no downtime over summer period 
• Rising demand 
• Impact of Covid  
• Increased acuity of patients 

 
40. Details of the response across the local system to increase capacity and 

operational resilience were considered by the Board. 
 
Family Hubs: 

41. The Board considered the implementation of the Family Hubs and Start for 
Life Programme. It was reported that the Family Hubs and Start for Life 
offer will have a direct impact on the six policy objectives of the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy through the provision of (a) an integrated support offer 
to families with dependent children; and (b) an all-age menu of help and 
advice for people of all ages, regardless of family composition.  
 

42. It was highlighted that resources had been allocated over the next three 
financial years to enable 75 upper-tier local authorities, including 
Gateshead, to deliver a package of family support and Start for Life 
services. An overview of proposals for the delivery model in Gateshead 
was provided, this included plans to re-purpose existing Children’s Centres 
under the new Family Hub and Start for Life branding; to work with the 
VCS in delivering the offer; the development of bespoke, nurturing spaces 
at our sites for confidential discussions, group activities and feeding-
friendly areas. 

 

Page 16



  

Recommendations 
 
43. The views of OSC are sought on:  
 

(i) the progress update on the work of Gateshead’s Health & Wellbeing 
Board for the second six months of 2022/23 as set out in this report. 

 
 
 
 

                 John Costello (Ext 2065)  

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
  CARE HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
   18 April 2023 

 
 
 
TITLE OF REPORT: Community Mental Health Transformation 
 
REPORT OF:  North East and North Cumbria Integrated Care Board 
  ________________________________________________________________ 
SUMMARY  
  
Adult Community Mental Health Transformation (CMHT) in Gateshead has aimed to 
take a radical change in approach to how we support people with their mental health 
through the integration of community-based systems of care and support which is 
linked closely with wider community services and primary care. 
 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
To provide an update on CMHT in Gateshead 
 
Background 
In accordance with the NHS Long Term Plan, the building blocks to our approach for 
CMHT has been to: 
 

• Develop a coordinated local offer based upon a Primary Care Network (PCN) 
footprint. 

• Focus on addressing the wider determinants of mental and physical health. 
• Building local capacity and opportunities. 
• Have an approach which is informed by experts by experience. 
• Increase communication and information sharing between partners. 
• Create a skilled local workforce. 
• Have a focus on early intervention and prevention. 
• Closer working and integration of clinical and non-clinical services. 

 
In addition, work is closely aligned to the Gateshead Health & Wellbeing Strategy, 
and CMHT is one of the priority areas of the Gateshead Cares Alliance. 
 
Key highlights to date 
 
A review of the mental health workforce has been undertaken at a PCN level which 
has led to the expansion on the workforce through the introduction of Mental Health 
Practitioners, Peer Support Workers and Health & Wellbeing Coach roles.  In 
addition, a virtual hub has been created which links up different parts of the system in 
order to develop joint working and improved referral routes; this has been done in 
conjunction with the local authority as part of a new locality working framework and 
development of Family Hubs.  A workforce network has also been established to 
improve understanding of the different roles across Gateshead to encourage a joined 
up approach and foster partnership working and innovation.   

  

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



 

A review of mental health residential care has been carried out; findings are now 
being used to develop an integrated model of residential care in conjunction with the 
local authority.  For specialist mental health, the ICB team in Gateshead are going 
out to the residential market to procure a new offer to commence 1 April 2024. 
 
Progress has been made to understand the current offer for emergency and urgent 
crisis provision and identify opportunities to improve the offer and referral routes 
locally to ensure people can access the support they need in a timely way to reduce 
the need for secondary care services,  presentations at A&E and calls to our blue 
light services.  A 4 bed crisis house pilot for men has taken place over the past 6 
months which has fulfilled the aim of avoiding hospital admission.  It is planned to 
expand the offer to include women in early 23/24. 
 
The voluntary and community sector is pivotal to the success of community model 
development and transforming how we understand need, address inequalities and 
commission services to better meet the needs of our population.  People with lived 
experience have told us that they prefer to seek support in non-clinical settings, and 
evidence tells us that non-clinical support can be just as, or even more effective than 
clinical intervention if it is received in a timely way.  
 
Following the success of an ICB funded Community grants scheme in 2022 a follow 
up scheme has just been launched which is targeted at smaller VCSE organisations 
to come forward with initiatives to support non-clinical solutions to supporting people 
with their mental health.  Continued learning from the scheme will inform future 
development of the community model and serve to bring support closer to 
communities which is holistic and person centred. 
 
Focus in 23/24 
 
Moving in to 23/24 we will build on the learning and successes of the CMHT 
programme by further developing the work of virtual hubs by working with the local 
authority, voluntary sector and key partners to develop a network of physical hubs 
across the borough which further supports the integration of health, social care and 
community services at a neighbourhood level. 
 
Work will also continue on the crisis pathway by bringing in other partners such as 
Northumbria Police, North East Ambulance Service and the 111 service to further 
develop innovative solutions to avoid attendance at A&E, hospital admission and 
Section 136 detention and the further development across the ICB of Urgent 
Treatment Centres. A crisis house for women and the development of 'safe spaces' 
across the borough that people can access to get support with their mental health will 
also be developed over the next 12 months. 
 
There will continue to be a focus on people with multiple and complex needs, mental 
health rehabilitation, inequalities and further development of the workforce.   We will 
continue to take a community development approach to further build local capacity 
together to ensure people get the support they need at the right place and at the right 
time.   
 
In order to build a robust infrastructure, there will be increased focus on estates, 
interoperability, information sharing, and improved data collection and performance 
information to inform decision making and investment.   

Page 20



 

          
Recommendations 
 

1. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to note the contents of the 
report. 

 
 
 
Contact:  Angela.kumar@nhs.net      

Page 21

mailto:Angela.kumar@nhs.net


This page is intentionally left blank



  

      
 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  Work Programme 2022-23 and Development of Work 

Programme for 2023-24 
  
REPORT OF:             Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive 

Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services 
& Governance 

______________________________________________________________________ 
Summary 
 
This report is set out in two parts. The first part sets out the current work programme for 
the Care Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the municipal year 
2022-23 and the second part details the current position and next steps in the 
development of the work programme for this OSC for the municipal year 2023-24. 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2022-23 Work Programme  
 

1. During 2022-23 the OSC has sought to influence and shape policy development, 
decision making and performance improvement work. 
 

2. During this period the OSC has monitored Council performance generally, in those 
areas falling within its remit, at its meetings on 14 June 2022 and 6 December 
2022. Cabinet has had regard to the OSC’s views when considering Council 
performance overall. 
 

3. The OSC has also monitored progress in relation to the following specific areas of 
performance and the OSC’s comments have been fed into the improvement work 
progressed by relevant service areas and fed back to relevant partners; 
 

- Workforce and Digital Inclusion – Place based approaches 
- CQC Assurance Framework 
- Adult Social Services Annual Report on Complaints and Representations 
- ICS / Gateshead Place Focus 
- Health and Wellbeing Board / Better Care Fund 
- Local Adult Safeguarding Board and Business Plans 
- Healthwatch Gateshead Update 
- Carers Support 
- Health Inequalities 
- Community Mental Health Transformation 

 
4. The Committee’s current work programme is set out at Appendix 1 and any 

changes to the programme have been highlighted in bold and italics for ease of 
identification. 
 
 
 
 
 

CARE HEALTH AND WELLBEING  
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

18 April 2023

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



  

Development of 2023-24 OSC Work Programmes 
 

5. An initial consultation with OSC Chairs, other elected members and officers, on the 
proposed priority issues for the new 2023-24 work programmes, was carried out 
between 13 February and 24 February 2023.  
 

6. It was highlighted that any suggestions for the work programmes should focus on 
priority issues that would support the Council’s Thrive agenda and add value, taking 
account of the priority areas outlined in the budget consultation; the Council’s 
Performance Framework; the Gateshead Strategic Needs Assessment and the 
Council’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 
 

7. At this OSC meeting on 18 April 2023 there will be an opportunity for the OSC to 
comment on and discuss emerging issues for this OSC and to put forward any 
additional issues for consideration.  
 
Next Steps 
 

8. Partner organisations will be consulted on the emerging issues for each OSC for 
2023-24, with a view to OSC’s considering any feedback and endorsing its 
respective work programmes at June 2023 OSC meetings. At which time 
Committee will be asked to refer its new work programme to Council for agreement. 

 
 
 
Recommendations 
 

9. The Committee is asked to:- 
a) Note the work programme for 2022-23; 
b) Comment on the emerging issues for this OSC’s 2023-24 work programme and 

highlight any additional issues for consideration. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact:     Rosalyn Patterson                            Ext:     2088 
 

Page 24



Appendix 1 

 

Draft Care, Health and Wellbeing OSC Work Programme 2022-23 
14 June 2022 
1.30pm 
 

• Performance Management and Improvement 
Framework- Year End Performance 2021-22  

• CQC Assurance Framework 
• Results of Covid 19 Survey 
• OSC Work Programme 

 
13 September 2022 
5.30pm 

Meeting Cancelled 

25 October 2022 
1.30pm 

• Workforce and Digital inclusion - Place - 
based approaches (including health and care 
recruitment) 

• CQC Assurance Framework - Update 
• Social Services Annual Report on 

Complaints and Representations – Adults (bf 
from Sept mtg) 

• ICS/Gateshead place focus (brought fwd from 
Sept mtg)  

• Health and Wellbeing Board / Better Care 
Fund –Update 

• OSC Work Programme 
 

6 December 2022 
1.30pm 

• Performance Management and Improvement 
Framework – Six Month Update 

• Update on Primary Care Networks / Work to 
Attract and Retain a multi professional 
health workforce in Gateshead/ Access to 
GP appointments during transition out of 
Covid (focusing on how different practices 
manage demand that they cannot fulfil; same-
day appointments only; in person and phone 
appointments; access barriers to appointments 
via landline, mobiles and online booking and 
any particular groups experiencing difficulty 
securing appointments) 

• Annual Report of Local Adult Safeguarding 
Board and Business Plans & emerging 
priorities (brought fwd from Sept mtg) 

• OSC Work Programme 
 

31 January 2023 
1.30pm 

• Substance / Alcohol Misuse and Support 
available to residents – Update/ Asset case 
studies – links to Poverty and Inequality (to 
include wider support – eg help with housing 
and jobs whilst/ once addiction being 
addressed)  

• Healthwatch Gateshead -Update  
• Dental Services for Adults -Progress Update 
• OSC Work Programme 

 

Page 25



Appendix 1 

 

7 March 2023 
1.30pm 

• Proposed Closure of Metro Interchange 
Surgery 

• Carers Support update 
• Work to tackle Health Inequalities in 

Gateshead – Update  
• CQC Verbal Update 
• OSC Work Programme 

 
18 April 2023 
1.30pm 

• Health and Wellbeing Board – Update  
• Community Mental Health Transformation – 

Update  
• OSC Work Programme 

 
 
Issues to slot in –  

• The Newcastle and Gateshead Persistent Physical Symptoms Service 
(PPSS) – part of OSC 2023-24 work programme – June 2023 mtg 

• Home Care Transformation/ Standards – for OSC 2023-24 work 
programme  

• The new LPS (Liberty Protection Safeguards) Update 
• Updates on ASC White Paper 
• Specific Health Conditions Commonly Affecting Minority Communities 

in Gateshead (eg sickle cell disease, Tay-Sachs and haemophilia) (to focus 
on how well trained/ equipped local health services are to respond) – 
(deferred from April 2023) 
 

Page 26



           Appendix 2 

Care, Health and Wellbeing OSC – Draft Work Programme 2023-24 

Strategic Vision – Making Gateshead a place where everyone thrives 
Five Pledges 

• Put people and families at the heart of everything we do 
• Tackle inequality so people have a fair chance 
• Support our communities to support themselves and each other 
• Invest in our economy to provide sustainable opportunities for employment, innovation 

and growth across the borough 
• Work together and fight for a better future. 

 

OSC Remit 
• Social Services (except those services provided to children and young people) 
• health services for adults and an overview of health services for children and young 

people in the borough 
• Overview of functions discharged under the Health and Social Care Act 2012 or any other 

enactment in relation to the planning provision and operation of the health service in the 
area. 

 

Emerging Issues: 
 

• The new LPS (Liberty Protection Safeguards)  
 

• Updates on ASC White Paper (covered in CQC Updates and Dept Strategy and 
Delivery Plan) 

 
• Work to Attract and Retain a multi professional Workforce /Access to GP 

Appointments (focusing on how different practices manage demand that they cannot 
fulfil; same-day appointments only; in person and phone appointments; access barriers to 
appointments via landline, mobiles and online booking and any particular groups 
experiencing difficulty securing appointments / update to include patient satisfaction data 
broken down to each surgery if possible / information on whether younger GPs coming 
into the profession in Gateshead prefer to be directly employed NHS Workers/ salaried 
GPs or the traditional GP business model) 
 

• The Newcastle and Gateshead Persistent Physical Symptoms Service (PPSS) 
 

• Support with the menopause, menstrual cycle problems and post-partum mental 
health issues: access to specialist support and variations of approach across 
Gateshead GP practices 
 

• Demand pressures on social care services 
 

• Widening inequalities / long-term health impacts  
 

• Ongoing issues surrounding hospital discharge and residential care numbers 
 

• PH update on the £5m grant to research inequalities 
 

• CQC Assurance  Page 27



 
• Departmental Strategy and Delivery Plan 

 
• Strengths Based Approaches 

 
• Co Production 

 
• Social Care Recruitment 

 
• Home Care Model  

 
• Care Home model 

 
• Extra Care/Supported Living models 

 
• Performance updates / Performance Management Framework for IASCS (already 

identified by OSC as issue for inclusion see table below) 
 

• Visit to Sister Winifred Laver Promoting Independence Centre (Autumn 2023) 
 
 

 
Issues where OSC has previously asked for continual updates / specific issues 

• Performance Management and Improvement Framework six month and end of year 
updates 

• Social Services Annual Report on Complaints and Representations – Adults 
• Annual Report of Local Adult Safeguarding Board and Business Plans & emerging 

priorities 
• Healthwatch Gateshead – annual update 
• Health and Wellbeing Board – six monthly updates  

 
It is proposed that these issues are retained as standard items within the OSC work 
programme. 

 

 

Page 28


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of last meeting
	3 Health and Wellbeing Board - Update
	Summary
	Background
	Gateshead Health & Wellbeing Board – Progress Update October 2022 to March 2023
	Recommendations

	4 Community Mental Health Transformation
	Summary

	5 Work Programme and Development of 2023-24 Work Programme
	Summary
	2022-23 Work Programme
	Recommendations
	Apx 1 CHW OSC Work Prog 2022-23
	Apx 2 - Potential Issues 2023-24


